
 

 

 
 
A VIRTUAL  MEETING WILL BE 
CONDUCTED WITH COUNTY COUNCIL.  

 
 
Watch Live via YouTube at:  
https://www.youtube.com/@jcmedia6537 

 
Instructions may also be found at the Jasper County website 
www.jaspercountysc.gov  
 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION, PLEASE CALL (843) 717-3696 
  

https://www.youtube.com/@jcmedia6537
http://www.jaspercountysc.gov/


 

1 
Agenda – 12.18.2023 

 

JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL CALLED 

Jasper County Clementa C. Pinckney Government Bldg  
     358 3rd Avenue Ridgeland, SC 29936                                                                                                                                     

Monday, December 18, 2023 
                          Agenda 

 
 

9:00AM 
 
1. Call to Order by Chairman Sauls 
 

 Clerk’s Report of Compliance with the Freedom of Information Act. 
 **In compliance with the Freedom of Information Act, notice of meetings and agendas were posted and 
furnished to all  news media and persons requesting notification** 

 
2. Pledge to the Flag 
        
3. Invocation  
       
4.  Discussion of Consent Agenda and Approval of Agenda:  
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________  

PUBLIC HEARINGS, ORDINANCES AND ACTION ITEMS 
 

 
5. None 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

 
 6. Kimberly Burgess – Consideration of the 3rd reading of Ordinance #O-2023-19    
 Amending the Business License Ordinance of the County of Jasper to Update the Class    
 Schedule as required by Act 176 of 2020. (1st reading 11.06.2023; Public hearing and    
 2nd reading 12.04.2023) 

 
 7. Kimberly Burgess – Consideration and acceptance of the Legislative Grant Award for the Jasper County 
BMX Track in the amount of $750,000, and County Administrator authorization to execute all necessary 
documents. 

 



 

2 
Agenda – 12.18.2023 

 

 8. Danny Lucas - Consideration of Grant Offer and Agreement for $14,353 from the SC  
 Aeronautics Commission for Automated Weather Observing System (AWOS) Installation at the  
 Ridgeland-Claude Dean Airport, and County Administrator authorization to execute all necessary 
documents. 
 
 9.  Kimberly Burgess - Consideration and acceptance of proposal by Safe Industries/KME for eleven (11) 
fully equipped class 1 pumpers including applicable sales tax, the purchase of Knox key systems for each 
pumper, and financing costs not to exceed $10,000,000 and County Administrator authorization to execute 
all necessary purchase agreements. 
 
 10.  Kimberly Burgess – Consideration and acceptance of proposal by Company Two Fire for one  
 P-19 Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting Vehicle (ARFF) not to exceed $390,000.00, and County 
Administrator authorization to execute all necessary documents. 
 
 11.  Approval of the Minutes of 08.21.2023; 08.30.2023; 09.05.2023; 09.18.2023 and 10.02.2023 
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

 
END OF CONSENT AGENDA 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
  12.   Council Members Comments 

 
  13.  Possible Return to Executive Session to Continue Discussion on Matters Regarding Agenda  
  Item II. 

*Council may act on any item appearing on the agenda including items discussed in executive 
session. 

 
  14.  Adjournment: 
 
In accordance with South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, Section 30-4-80(d), as amended, notification of the 
meeting was posted on the County Council Building at a publicly accessible place and on the county website at 
least 24 hours prior to the meeting.  A copy of the agenda was given to the local news media and posted at the 
meeting location twenty-four hours prior to the meeting.  
 

Special Accommodations Available Upon Request to Individuals with Disabilities 
(843) 717-3696 

 
        





 

1 

 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF JASPER 

 
ORDINANCE #O-2023-19 

 
AN ORDINANCE 

OF JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

An ordinance amending the business license ordinance of the county of jasper to update 
the class schedule as required by act 176 of 2020. 
 
 
WHEREAS, Jasper County (the “County”) is authorized by S.C. Code Section 5-7-30 and 

Title 6, Chapter 1, Article 3 to impose a business license tax on gross income;  

WHEREAS, by Act No. 176 of 2020, known as the South Carolina Business License Tax 

Standardization Act and codified at S.C. Code Sections 6-1-400 to -420 (the 

“Standardization Act”), the South Carolina General Assembly imposed additional 

requirements and conditions on the administration of business license taxes; 

WHEREAS, the Standardization Act requires that by December thirty-first of every odd 

year, each municipality levying a business license tax must adopt, by ordinance, the latest 

Standardized Business License Class Schedule as recommended by the Municipal 

Association of South Carolina (the “Association”) and adopted by the Director of the 

Revenue and Fiscal Affairs Office; 

WHEREAS, following the enactment of the Standardization Act, the Municipality 

enacted Ordinance No. 2021-26 on December 6, 2021, in order to comply with the 

requirements of the Standardization Act (the “Current Business License Ordinance”); 

WHEREAS, the Jasper County Council (the “Council”) now wishes to amend the Current 

Business License Ordinance to adopt the latest Standardized Business License Class 

Schedule, as required by the Standardization Act, and to make other minor amendments 

as recommended by the Association;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Jasper County Council, as follows: 

SECTION 1. Amendments to Appendix A.   Appendix A to the Current Business 

License Ordinance, the “Business License Rate Schedule,” is hereby amended as follows: 

(a) Class 8.3 is hereby amended by deleting the NAICS Codes and replacing 

them with NAICS 517111, 517112, 517122 – Telephone Companies.  

(b) Class 8.6 is hereby amended and restated in its entirety to read as follows: 

“8.6 NAICS Code Varies – Billiard or Pool Tables. A business that 

offers the use of billiard or pool tables shall be subject to business license 

taxation under its natural class for all gross income of the business 

excluding the gross income attributable to the billiard or pool tables. In 



 

2 

 

addition, the billiard or pool tables shall require their own separate business 

licenses pursuant to SC Code § 12-21-2746 and shall be subject to a license 

tax of $5.00 per table measuring less than 3½ feet wide and 7 feet long, and 

$12.50 per table longer than that.” 

[(c) The NAICS codes corresponding to Classes 9.41 and 9.42 have been 

eliminated. Businesses that were previously classified into 9.41 or 9.42 shall 

be required to apply and pay for a business license in their natural class.  

SECTION 2. Amendments to Appendix B.   Appendix B to the Current Business 

License Ordinance, the “Business License Class Schedule,” is hereby amended as follows: 

(a) Classes 1 through 8 in Appendix B to the Current Business License 

Ordinance, the “Business License Class Schedule,” are hereby amended and 

restated as set forth on the attached Exhibit A. 

(b) Class 9 in Appendix B to the Current Business License Ordinance, the 

“Business License Class Schedule,” shall remain in full force and effect as 

set forth in the Current Business License Ordinance. 

[(c) The NAICS codes corresponding to Classes 9.41 and 9.42 have been 

eliminated. Businesses that were previously classified into 9.41 or 9.42 shall 

be required to apply and pay for a business license in their natural class.  

SECTION 3. Repeal, Effective Date.  All ordinances in conflict with this ordinance 

are hereby repealed. This ordinance shall be effective with respect to the business license 

year beginning on May 1, 2024. 

 

SECTION 4.  This Ordinance shall take effect upon approval by Council.    

 

              

L. Martin Sauls, IV 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

              

Wanda Simmons 

Clerk to Council 

ORDINANCE: O-2023-19 

First Reading: 11.06.2023 

Second Reading: 12.04.2023 

Public Hearing: 12.04.2023 

Adopted:   12.18.2023  



 

3 

 

 

 

 

 
Exhibit A: Amendment to Classes 1 – 8 in Appendix B of the 

Current Business License Ordinance 

 
APPENDIX B 

Classes 1 – 8: Business License Class Schedule by NAICS Codes 
   

NAICS  
Sector/Subsector Industry Sector Class 

11 Agriculture, forestry, hunting and fishing 1 

21 Mining 2 

22 Utilities 1 

31 - 33 Manufacturing 3 

42 Wholesale trade 1 

44 - 45 Retail trade 1 

48 - 49 Transportation and warehousing 1 

51 Information 4 

52 Finance and insurance 7 

53 Real estate and rental and leasing 7 

54 Professional, scientific, and technical services 5 

55 Management of companies 7 

56 Administrative and support and waste management and remediation services 3 

61 Educational services 3 

62 Health care and social assistance 4 

71 Arts, entertainment, and recreation 3 

721 Accommodation 1 

722 Food services and drinking places 2 

81 Other services 4 

      

Class 8 Subclasses   

23 Construction 8.1 

482 Rail Transportation 8.2 

517111 Wired Telecommunications Carriers  8.3 

517112 Wireless Telecommunications Carriers (except Satellite) 8.3 

517122 Agents for Wireless Telecommunications Services 8.3 

5241 Insurance Carriers 8.4 

5242 Insurance Brokers for non-admitted Insurance Carriers 8.4 

713120 Amusement Parks and Arcades 8.51 

713290 Non-payout Amusement Machines 8.52 

713990 All Other Amusement and Recreational Industries (pool tables) 8.6 

      

2023 Class Schedule is based on a three-year average (2017 - 2019) of IRS statistical data. 
   



 

4 

 

JASPER COUNTY 2024 BUSINESS LICENSE ORDINANCE 

Section 8-31.  License Required. Every person engaged or intending to engage in any business, 
calling, occupation, profession, or activity with the object of gain, benefit, or advantage, in whole 
or in part within the unincorporated areas of Jasper County, South Carolina (hereinafter 
“County”) is required to pay an annual license tax for the privilege of doing business and obtain 
a business license as herein provided. 

Section 8-32.  Definitions. The following words, terms, and phrases, when used in this 
ordinance, shall have the meaning ascribed herein. Defined terms are not capitalized when used 
in this ordinance unless the context otherwise requires. 

“Business” means any business, calling, occupation, profession, or activity engaged in with the 
object of gain, benefit, or advantage, either directly or indirectly. 

“Charitable Organization” means an organization that is determined by the Internal Revenue 
Service to be exempt from Federal income taxes under 26 U.S.C. Section 501(c)(3), (4), (6), (7), 
(8), (10) or (19). 

“Charitable Purpose” means a benevolent, philanthropic, patriotic, or eleemosynary purpose that 
does not result in personal gain to a sponsor, organizer, officer, director, trustee, or person with 
ultimate control of the organization. 

“Classification” means that division of businesses by NAICS codes subject to the same license rate 
as determined by a calculated index of ability to pay based on national averages, benefits, 
equalization of tax burden, relationships of services, or other basis deemed appropriate by the 
Council. 

“Council” means the County Council of Jasper County. 

“County” means Jasper County, South Carolina. 

“Domicile” means a principal place from which the trade or business of a licensee is conducted, 
directed, or managed. For purposes of this ordinance, a licensee may be deemed to have more 
than one domicile. 

“Gross Income” means the gross receipts or gross revenue of a business, received or accrued, for 
one calendar or fiscal year collected or to be collected from business done within the 
unincorporated area of the County. If the licensee has a domicile within the County, business 
done within the County shall include all gross receipts or revenue received or accrued by such 
licensee. If the licensee does not have a domicile within the County, business done within the 
County shall include only gross receipts or revenue received or accrued within the 
unincorporated area of the County. In all cases, if the licensee pays a business license tax to 
another county or municipality, then the licensee’s gross income for the purpose of computing 
the tax within the unincorporated area of the County must be reduced by the amount of revenues 
or receipts taxed in the other county or municipality and fully reported to the County. Gross 
income for business license tax purposes shall not include taxes collected for a governmental 
entity, escrow funds, or funds that are the property of a third party. The value of bartered goods 
or trade-in merchandise shall be included in gross income. The gross receipts or gross revenues 



 

5 

 

for business license purposes may be verified by inspection of returns and reports filed with the 
Internal Revenue Service, the South Carolina Department of Revenue, the South Carolina 
Department of Insurance, or other government agencies. In calculating gross income for certain 
businesses, the following rules shall apply: 

A. Gross income for agents shall be calculated on gross commissions received or retained, 

unless otherwise specified. If commissions are divided with other brokers or agents, then 

only the amount retained by the broker or agent is considered gross income. 

B. Except as specifically required by S.C. Code § 38-7-20, gross income for insurance 

companies shall be calculated on gross premiums written.  

C. Gross income for manufacturers of goods or materials with a location in the County shall 

be calculated on the lesser of (i) gross revenues or receipts received or accrued from 

business done at the location, (ii) the amount of income allocated and apportioned to 

that location by the business for purposes of the business’s state income tax return, or 

(iii) the amount of expenses attributable to the location as a cost center of the business. 

Licensees reporting gross income under this provision shall have the burden to establish 

the amount and method of calculation by satisfactory records and proof. Manufacturers 

include those taxpayers reporting a manufacturing principal business activity code on 

their federal income tax returns. 

“License Official” means a person designated to administer this ordinance. Notwithstanding the 
designation of a primary license official, the County may designate one or more alternate license 
officials to administer particular types of business licenses. 

“Licensee” means the business, the person applying for the license on behalf of the business, an 
agent or legal representative of the business, a person who receives any part of the net profit of 
the business, or a person who owns or exercises control of the business. 

“NAICS” means the North American Industry Classification System for the United States published 
under the auspices of the Federal Office of Management and Budget. 

“Person” means any individual, firm, partnership, limited liability partnership, limited liability 
company, cooperative non-profit membership, corporation, joint venture, association, estate, 
trust, business trust, receiver, syndicate, holding company, or other group or combination acting 
as a unit, in the singular or plural, and the agent or employee having charge or control of a 
business in the absence of the principal. 

Section 8-33.  Purpose and Duration. The business license required by this ordinance is for the 
purpose of providing such regulation as may be required for the business subject thereto and for 
the purpose of raising revenue for the general fund through a privilege tax. The license year 
ending on April 30, 2022, shall commence on August 1, 2021, and shall run for a nine (9) month 
period. Thereafter, the license periods shall be established as follows. Except as set forth below 
for business licenses issued to contractors with respect to specific construction projects, each 
yearly license shall be issued for the twelve-month period of May 1 to April 30. A business license 



 

6 

 

issued for a construction contract may, at the request of the licensee, be stated to expire at the 
completion of the construction project; provided, any such business license may require that the 
licensee file, by each April 30 during the continuation of the construction project, a statement of 
compliance, including but not limited to a revised estimate of the value of the contract. If any 
revised estimate of the final value of such project exceeds the amount for which the business 
license was issued, the licensee shall be required to pay a license fee at the then-prevailing rate 
on the excess amount. The provisions of this ordinance and the rates herein shall remain in effect 
from year to year as amended by the Council. 

Section 8-34.  Business License Tax, Refund. 

A. The required business license tax shall be paid for each business subject hereto according 

to the applicable rate classification on or before the due date of the 30th day of April in 

each year, except for those businesses in Rate Class 8 for which a different due date is 

specified. Late payments shall be subject to penalties as set forth in Section 12 hereof, 

except that admitted insurance companies may pay before June 1 without penalty. 

B. A separate license shall be required for each place of business and for each classification 

or business conducted at one place. If gross income cannot be separated for 

classifications at one location, the business license tax shall be computed on the 

combined gross income for the classification requiring the highest rate. The business 

license tax must be computed based on the licensee’s gross income for the calendar year 

preceding the due date, for the licensee’s twelve-month fiscal year preceding the due 

date, or on a twelve-month projected income based on the monthly average for a 

business in operation for less than one year. The business license tax for a new business 

must be computed on the estimated probable gross income for the balance of the license 

year. A business license related to construction contract projects may be issued on a per-

project basis, at the option of the taxpayer. No refund shall be made for a business that 

is discontinued. 

C. A licensee that submits a payment greater than the amount owed may request a refund. 

To be considered, a refund request must be submitted in writing to the County before the 

June 1st immediately following the April 30th on which the payment was due and must 

be supported by adequate documentation supporting the refund request. The County 

shall approve or deny the refund request, and if approved shall issue the refund to the 

business, within thirty days after receipt of the request. 

Section 8-35.  Registration Required. 

A. The owner, agent, or legal representative of every business subject to this ordinance, 

whether listed in the classification index or not, shall register the business and make 

application for a business license on or before the due date of each year; provided, a new 

business shall be required to have a business license prior to operation within the 



 

7 

 

unincorporated area of the County. A license for a bar (NAICS 722410) must be issued in 

the name of the individual who has been issued the corresponding state alcohol, beer, or 

wine permit or license and will have actual control and management of the business. 

B. Application shall be on the then-current standard business license application as 

established and provided by the Director of the South Carolina Revenue and Fiscal Affairs 

Office and shall be accompanied by all information about the applicant, the licensee, and 

the business deemed appropriate to carry out the purpose of this ordinance by the license 

official. Applicants may be required to submit copies of portions of state and federal 

income tax returns reflecting gross receipts and gross revenue figures. 

C. The applicant shall certify under oath that the information given in the application is true, 

that the gross income is accurately reported (or estimated for a new business) without 

any unauthorized deductions, and that all assessments, personal property taxes on 

business property, and other monies due and payable to the County have been paid. 

D. The County shall allow application, reporting, calculation, and payment of business 

license taxes through the business license tax portal hosted and managed by the South 

Carolina Revenue and Fiscal Affairs Office, subject to the availability and capability 

thereof. Any limitations in portal availability or capability do not relieve the applicant or 

licensee from existing business license or business license tax obligations. 

Section 8-36.  Deductions, Exemptions, and Charitable Organizations. 

A. No deductions from gross income shall be made except income earned outside of the 

County on which a license tax is paid by the business to some other county or municipality 

and fully reported to the County, taxes collected for a governmental entity, or income 

which cannot be included for computation of the tax pursuant to state or federal law. 

Properly apportioned income from business in interstate commerce shall be included in 

the calculation of gross income and is not exempted. The applicant shall have the burden 

to establish the right to exempt income by satisfactory records and proof. 

B. No person shall be exempt from the requirements of the ordinance by reason of the lack 

of an established place of business within the County, unless exempted by state or federal 

law. The license official shall determine the appropriate classification for each business in 

accordance with the latest issue of NAICS. No person shall be exempt from this ordinance 

by reason of the payment of any other tax, unless exempted by state law, and no person 

shall be relieved of liability for payment of any other tax or fee by reason of application 

of this ordinance. 

C. Wholesalers are exempt from business license taxes unless they maintain warehouses or 

distribution establishments within the County. A wholesale transaction involves a sale to 



 

8 

 

an individual who will resell the goods and includes delivery of the goods to the reseller. 

It does not include a sale of goods to a user or consumer. 

D. A charitable organization shall be exempt from the business license tax on its gross 

income unless it is deemed a business subject to a business license tax on all or part of its 

gross income as provided in this section. A charitable organization, or any affiliate of a 

charitable organization, that reports income from for-profit activities or unrelated 

business income for federal income tax purposes to the Internal Revenue Service shall be 

deemed a business subject to a business license tax on the part of its gross income from 

such for-profit activities or unrelated business income. 

E. A charitable organization shall be deemed a business subject to a business license tax on 

its total gross income if (1) any net proceeds of operation, after necessary expenses of 

operation, inure to the benefit of any individual or any entity that is not itself a charitable 

organization as defined in this ordinance, or (2) any net proceeds of operation, after 

necessary expenses of operation, are used for a purpose other than a charitable purpose 

as defined in this ordinance. Excess benefits or compensation in any form beyond fair 

market value to a sponsor, organizer, officer, director, trustee, or person with ultimate 

control of the organization shall not be deemed a necessary expense of operation.  

Section 8-37.  False Application Unlawful. It shall be unlawful for any person subject to the 
provisions of this ordinance to make a false application for a business license or to give or file, or 
direct the giving or filing of, any false information with respect to the license or tax required by 
this ordinance. 

Section 8.38.  Display and Transfer. 

A. All persons shall display the license issued to them on the original form provided by the 

license official in a conspicuous place in the business establishment at the address shown 

on the license. A transient or non-resident shall carry the license upon his person or in a 

vehicle used in the business readily available for inspection by any authorized agent of 

the County. 

B. A change of address must be reported to the license official within ten (10) days after 

removal of the business to a new location and the license will be valid at the new address 

upon written notification by the license official and compliance with zoning and building 

codes. Failure to obtain the approval of the license official for a change of address shall 

invalidate the license and subject the licensee to prosecution for doing business without 

a license. A business license shall not be transferable, and a transfer of controlling interest 

shall be considered a termination of the old business and the establishment of a new 

business requiring a new business license, based on old business income. 



 

9 

 

Section 8-39.  Administration of Ordinance. The license official shall administer the provisions 

of this ordinance, collect business license taxes, issue licenses, make or initiate investigations 

and audits to ensure compliance, initiate denial or suspension and revocation procedures, 

report violations to the county attorney, assist in prosecution of violators, produce forms, 

undertake reasonable procedures relating to the administration of this ordinance, and perform 

such other duties as may be duly assigned. Nothing herein shall be deemed to prohibit the 

County from entering into such contractual arrangements, as may be allowed by law, with 

outside entities for any or all of the administrative functions of the license official, who, in such 

instances, will supervise the activities of the contracting entity(ies). 

 

Section 8-40.  Inspection and Audits.  

A. For the purpose of enforcing the provisions of this ordinance, the license official or other 

authorized agent of the County is empowered to enter upon the premises of any person 

subject to this ordinance to make inspections and to examine and audit books and 

records. It shall be unlawful for any such person to fail or refuse to make available the 

necessary books and records. In the event an audit or inspection reveals that the licensee 

has filed false information, the costs of the audit shall be added to the correct business 

license tax and late penalties in addition to other penalties provided herein. Each day of 

failure to pay the proper amount of business license tax shall constitute a separate 

offense. 

B. The license official shall have the authority to make inspections and conduct audits of 

businesses to ensure compliance with the ordinance. Financial information obtained by 

inspections and audits shall not be deemed public records, and the license official shall 

not release the amount of business license taxes paid or the reported gross income of any 

person by name without written permission of the licensee, except as authorized by this 

ordinance, state or federal law, or proper judicial order. Statistics compiled by 

classifications are public records. 

Section 8-41.  Assessments, Payment under Protest, Appeal. 

A. Assessments, payments under protest, and appeals of assessment shall be allowed and 

conducted by the County pursuant to the provisions of S.C. Code § 6-1-410, as amended. 

In preparing an assessment, the license official may examine such records of the business 

or any other available records as may be appropriate and conduct such investigations and 

statistical surveys as the license official may deem appropriate to assess a business license 

tax and penalties as provided herein. 



 

10 

 

B. The license official shall establish a uniform local procedure consistent with S.C. Code § 

6-1-410 for hearing an application for adjustment of assessment and issuing a notice of 

final assessment. 

Section 8-42.  Delinquent License Taxes, Partial Payment. 

A. For non-payment of all or any part of the correct business license tax, the license official 

shall impose and collect a late penalty of five (5%) percent of the unpaid tax for each 

month or portion thereof after the due date until paid. Penalties shall not be waived. If 

any business license tax remains unpaid for sixty (60) days after its due date, the license 

official shall report it to the county attorney for appropriate legal action. 

B. Partial payment may be accepted by the license official to toll imposition of penalties on 

the portion paid; provided, however, no business license shall be issued or renewed until 

the full amount of the tax due, with penalties, has been paid. 

Section 8-43.  Notices. The license official may, but shall not be required to, mail written notices 
that business license taxes are due. If notices are not mailed, there shall be published a notice of 
the due date in a newspaper of general circulation within the County three (3) times prior to the 
due date in each year. Failure to receive notice shall not constitute a defense to prosecution for 
failure to pay the tax due or grounds for waiver of penalties. 

Section 8-44.  Denial of License. The license official may deny a license to an applicant when the 
license official determines: 

A. The application is incomplete or contains a misrepresentation, false or misleading 

statement, or evasion or suppression of a material fact; 

B. The activity for which a license is sought is unlawful or constitutes a public nuisance per 

se or per accident; 

C. The applicant, licensee, prior licensee, or the person in control of the business has been 

convicted within the previous ten years of an offense under a law or ordinance regulating 

business, a crime involving dishonest conduct or moral turpitude related to a business or 

a subject of a business, or an unlawful sale of merchandise or prohibited goods; 

D. The applicant, licensee, prior licensee, or the person in control of the business has 

engaged in an unlawful activity or nuisance related to the business or to a similar business 

in the County or in another jurisdiction; 

E. The applicant, licensee, prior licensee, or the person in control of the business is 

delinquent in the payment to the County of any tax or fee; 

F. A licensee has actual knowledge or notice, or based on the circumstances reasonably 

should have knowledge or notice, that any person or employee of the licensee has 

committed a crime of moral turpitude on the business premises, or has permitted any 



 

11 

 

person or employee of the licensee to engage in the unlawful sale of merchandise or 

prohibited goods on the business premises and has not taken remedial measures 

necessary to correct such activity; or 

G. The license for the business or for a similar business of the licensee in the County or 

another jurisdiction has been denied, suspended, or revoked in the previous license year. 

A decision of the license official shall be subject to appeal as herein provided. Denial shall be 
written with reasons stated. 

Section 8.45.  Suspension or Revocation of License. When the license official determines: 

A. A license has been mistakenly or improperly issued or issued contrary to law; 

B. A licensee has breached any condition upon which the license was issued or has failed to 

comply with the provisions of this ordinance; 

C. A licensee has obtained a license through a fraud, misrepresentation, a false or misleading 

statement, or evasion or suppression of a material fact in the license application; 

D. A licensee has been convicted within the previous ten years of an offense under a law or 

ordinance regulating business, a crime involving dishonest conduct or moral turpitude 

related to a business or a subject of a business, or an unlawful sale of merchandise or 

prohibited goods; 

E. A licensee has engaged in an unlawful activity or nuisance related to the business; or 

F. A licensee is delinquent in the payment to the County of any tax or fee.  

\The license official may give written notice to the licensee or the person in control of the 
business within the County by personal service or mail that the license is suspended pending 
a single hearing before Council or its designee for the purpose of determining whether the 
suspension should be upheld and the license should be revoked. 

The written notice of suspension and proposed revocation shall state the time and place at 
which the hearing is to be held, and shall contain a brief statement of the reasons for the 
suspension and proposed revocation and a copy of the applicable provisions of this 
ordinance. 

Section 8-46.  Appeals to Council or its Designee. 

A. Except with respect to appeals of assessments under Section 11 hereof, which are 

governed by S.C. Code § 6-1-410, any person aggrieved by a determination, denial, or 

suspension and proposed revocation of a business license by the license official may 

appeal the decision to the Council or its designee by written request stating the reasons 

for appeal, filed with the license official within ten (10) days after service by mail or 

personal service of the notice of determination, denial, or suspension and proposed 

revocation. 



 

12 

 

B. A hearing on an appeal from a license denial or other determination of the license official 

and a hearing on a suspension and proposed revocation shall be held by the Council or its 

designee within ten (10) business days after receipt of a request for appeal or service of 

a notice of suspension and proposed revocation. The hearing shall be held upon written 

notice at a regular or special meeting of the Council, or, if by designee of the Council, at a 

hearing to be scheduled by the designee. The hearing may be continued to another date 

by agreement of all parties. At the hearing, all parties shall have the right to be 

represented by counsel, to present testimony and evidence, and to cross-examine 

witnesses. The proceedings shall be recorded and transcribed at the expense of the party 

so requesting. The rules of evidence and procedure prescribed by Council, or its designee 

shall govern the hearing. Following the hearing, the Council by majority vote of its 

members present, or the designee of Council if the hearing is held by the designee, shall 

render a written decision based on findings of fact and conclusions on application of the 

standards herein. The written decision shall be served, by personal service or by mail, 

upon all parties or their representatives and shall constitute the final decision of the 

County.  

C. Timely appeal of a decision of Council or its designee does not effectuate a stay of that 

decision. The decision of the Council or its designee shall be binding and enforceable 

unless overturned by an applicable appellate court after a due and timely appeal. 

Section 8-47.  Consent, franchise, or license required for use of streets. 

A. It shall be unlawful for any person to construct, install, maintain, or operate in, on, above, 

or under any street or public place under control of the County any line, pipe, cable, pole, 

structure, or facility for utilities, communications, cablevision, or other purposes without 

a consent agreement or franchise agreement issued by the Council by ordinance that 

prescribes the term, fees, and conditions for use. 

B. The annual fee for use of streets or public places authorized by a consent agreement or 

franchise agreement shall be set by the ordinance approving the agreement and shall be 

consistent with limits set by state law. Existing franchise agreements shall continue in 

effect until expiration dates in the agreements. Franchise and consent fees shall not be in 

lieu of or be credited against business license taxes unless specifically provided by the 

franchise or consent agreement. 

Section 8-48.  Confidentiality. Except in accordance with proper judicial order or as otherwise 
provided by law, no official or employee of the County may divulge or make known in any manner 
the amount of income, or any financial particulars set forth or disclosed in any report or return 
required under this ordinance. Nothing in this section shall be construed to prohibit the 
publication of statistics so classified as to prevent the identification of particular reports or 



 

13 

 

returns. Any license data may be shared with other public officials or employees in the 
performance of their duties, whether or not those duties relate to enforcement of this ordinance. 

Section 8-49.  Violations. Any person violating any provision of this ordinance shall be deemed 
guilty of an offense and shall be subject to a fine of up to $500.00 or imprisonment for not more 
than thirty (30) days or both, upon conviction. Each day of violation shall be considered a 
separate offense. Punishment for violation shall not relieve the offender of liability for delinquent 
taxes, penalties, and costs provided for in this ordinance. 

Section 8-50.  Severability. A determination that any portion of this ordinance is invalid or 
unenforceable shall not affect the remaining portions. To the extent of any conflict between the 
provisions of this ordinance and the provisions of the South Carolina Business License Tax 
Standardization Act, as codified at S.C. Code §§ 6-1-400 et seq., the standardization act shall 
control. 

Section 8-51.  Classification and Rates. 

A. The business license tax for each class of businesses subject to this ordinance shall be 

computed in accordance with the current business license rate schedule, designated as 

Appendix A to this ordinance, which may be amended from time to time by the Council.  

B. The current business license class schedule is attached hereto as Appendix B. Hereafter, 

no later than December 31 of each odd year, the County shall adopt, by ordinance, the 

latest standardized business license class schedule as recommended by the Municipal 

Association of South Carolina and adopted by the Director of the South Carolina Revenue 

and Fiscal Affairs Office. Upon adoption by the County, the revised business license class 

schedule shall then be appended to this ordinance as a replacement Appendix B. 

C. The classifications included in each rate class are listed with NAICS codes, by sector, sub-

sector, group, or industry. The business license class schedule (Appendix B) is a tool for 

classification and not a limitation on businesses subject to a business license tax. The 

classification in the most recent version of the business license class schedule adopted by 

the Council that most specifically identifies the subject business shall be applied to the 

business. The license official shall have the authority to make the determination of the 

classification most specifically applicable to a subject business. 

D. A copy of the class schedule and rate schedule shall be filed in the office of the County 

Clerk to Council. 

 



 

 

 

A-1 

APPENDIX A: BUSINESS LICENSE RATE SCHEDULE 

   INCOME: $0 - $2,000  INCOME OVER $2,000 

RATE CLASS  BASE RATE   RATE PER $1,000 OR FRACTION THEREOF 

1   $20.00      $0.50 

2    $25.00      $0.60 

3   $30.00      $0.70 

4   $35.00      $0.80 

5    $40.00      $0.90 

6    $45.00      $1.00 

7    $50.00      $1.10 

8.1    $50.00      $0.60 

8.2    Set by state statute 

8.3   MASC Telecommunications 

8.4   MASC Insurance 

8.51    $12.50 + $12.50 per machine 

8.52    $12.50 + $180.00 per machine 

8.6    $50.00      $0.55 

 plus $5.00 -OR- $12.50 per table based on size pursuant to § 12-21-2746  

9.30   $50.00      $0.75 

9.41   $100.00     $2.00 

9.70   $200.00     $2.00 

9.91   $500.00     $2.00 

 

NON-RESIDENT RATES 

Unless otherwise specifically provided, all taxes and rates shall be doubled for nonresidents and 

itinerants having no fixed principal place of business within the County. 

  



 

 

 

A-2 

DECLINING RATES  

Declining Rates apply in all Classes for gross income in excess of $1,000,000, unless otherwise 

specifically provided for in this ordinance. 

Gross Income in $ Millions of   Percent of Class Rate for each additional 

$1,000 

0 - 7       100% 

7 - 10      50% for this increment 

10 – 20      35% for this increment 

20 – 50      15% for this increment 

OVER 50     10% for this increment 

 



 

 

 

A-3 

CLASS 8 and CLASS 9 RATES 

Each NAICS number designates a separate subclassification. The businesses in this section are 

treated as separate and individual subclasses due to provisions of state law, regulatory 

requirements, service burdens, tax equalization considerations, and other factors that are 

deemed sufficient to require individually determined rates. In accordance with state law, the 

County also may provide for reasonable subclassifications for rates, described by an NAICS sector, 

subsector, or industry, that are based on particularized considerations as needed for economic 

stimulus or for the enhanced or disproportionate demands on county services or infrastructure.  

Non-resident rates do not apply except where indicated. 

 

8.1 NAICS 230000 – Contractors, Construction, All Types [Non-resident rates apply]. 

Resident rates, for contractors having a permanent place of business within the County: 

Minimum on first $2,000 ................................................................................. $ 50.00 PLUS 

Each additional 1,000 .................................................................................................. $ 0.60 

Non-resident rates apply to contractors that do not have a permanent place of business within 

the County. A trailer at the construction site or structure in which the contractor temporarily 

resides is not a permanent place of business under this ordinance. 

No contractor shall be issued a business license until all state and county qualification 

examination and trade license requirements have been met. Each contractor shall post a sign in 

plain view on each job identifying the contractor with the job. 

Sub-contractors shall be licensed on the same basis as general or prime contractors for the same 

job. No deductions shall be made by a general or prime contractor for value of work performed 

by a sub-contractor. 

No contractor shall be issued a business license until all performance and indemnity bonds 

required by the Building Code have been filed and approved. Zoning permits must be obtained 

when required by the Zoning Ordinance. 

Each prime contractor shall file with the License Official a list of subcontractors furnishing labor 

or materials for each project. 

For licenses issued on a per-job basis, the total tax for the full amount of the contract shall be 

paid prior to commencement of work and shall entitle the contractor to complete the job without 

regard to the normal license expiration date. An amended report shall be filed for each new job 

and the appropriate additional license fee per $1,000 of the contract amount shall be paid prior 

to commencement of new work. Only one base tax shall be paid in a license year. Licensees 

holding a per-job license shall file, by each April 30 during the continuation of the construction 

project, a statement of compliance, including but not limited to a revised estimate of the value 

of the contract. If any revised estimate of the final value of such project exceeds the amount for 



 

 

 

A-4 

which the business license was issued, the licensee shall be required to pay a license fee at the 

then-prevailing rate on the excess amount. 

8.2 NAICS 482 – Railroad Companies (See S.C. Code § 12-23-210). 

8.3 NACIS 517111, 517112, 571222 – Telephone Companies.  With respect to “retail 

telecommunications services” as defined in S. C. Code 58-9-2200, the County participates in a 

collections program administered by the Municipal Association of South Carolina.  The County 

has approved participation in the collections program by separate ordinance (the 

“Telecommunications Collections Ordinance”.) The rates, terms, conditions, dates penalties, 

appeals process, and other details of the business license applicable to retail telecommunications 

services are set forth in the Telecommunications Collections Ordinance.   

8.4 NAICS 5241 – Insurance Companies.  Independent agents, brokers, and their employees 

are subject to a business license tax based on their natural class.  With respect to insurers subject 

to license fees and taxes under Chapter 7 of Title 38 and to brokers under Chapter 45 of Title 38, 

the County participates in a collections program administered by the Municipal Association of 

South Carolina.  The County has approved participation in the collections program by separate 

ordinance (the “Insurers and Brokers Collections Ordinance”.)  The rates, terms, conditions, 

dates, penalties, appeals process, and other details of the business license applicable to insurers 

and brokers are set forth in the Insurers and Brokers Collections Ordinance.  

8.51 NAICS 713120 – Amusement Machines, coin operated (except gambling).  Music 

machines, juke boxes, kiddie rides, video games, pin tables with levers, and other amusement 

machines with or without free play feature licensed by SC Department of Revenue pursuant to 

S.C. Code §12-21-2720(A)(1) and (A)(2) [Type I and Type II]. 

For operation of all machines (not on gross income), pursuant to S.C. Code §12-21-2746: 

Per Machine ...................................................................................................... $12.50 PLUS 

Business license ......................................................................................................... $12.50  

Distributors that sell or lease machines and are not licensed by the state as an operator pursuant 

to §12-21-2728 are not subject to Subclass 8.51.  

8.52  NAICS 713290 – Amusement Machines, coin operated, non-payout. Amusement 

machines of the non-payout type or in-line pin game licensed by SC Department of Revenue 

pursuant to S.C. Code §12-21-2720(A)(3) [Type III]. 

For operation of all machines (not on gross income), pursuant to S.C. Code §12-21-2720(C): 

Per Machine .................................................................................................... $180.00 PLUS 

Business license ......................................................................................................... $12.50 

Distributors that sell or lease machines and are not licensed by the state as an operator pursuant 

to §12-21-2728 are not subject to Subclass 8.52. 



 

 

 

A-5 

8.6 NAICS 713990 – Billiard or Tables .  A business that offers the use of billiard or pool tables 

shall be subject to business license taxation under its natural class for all gross income of the 

business excluding the gross income attributable to the billiard or pool tables. In addition, the 

billiard or pool tables shall require their own separate business licenses pursuant to SC Code § 12-

21-2746 and shall be subject to a license tax of $5.00 per table measuring less than 3½ feet wide 

and 7 feet long, and $12.50 per table longer than that.” 

 

9.3 NAICS 4411, 4412 – Automotive, Motor Vehicles, Boats, Farm Machinery or Retail. 

(except auto supply stores - see 4413) 

Minimum on first $2,000 .................................................................................. $50.00 PLUS 

Per $1,000, or fraction, over $2,000 ............................................................................ $0.75 

One sales lot not more than 400 feet from the main showroom may be operated under 

this license provided that proceeds from sales at the lot are included in gross receipts at 

the main office when both are operated under the same name and ownership. 

Gross receipts for this classification shall include value of trade-ins. Dealer transfers or 

internal repairs on resale items shall not be included in gross income. 

 

 

9.7 NAICS 722410 – Drinking Places, bars, lounges, cabarets (Alcoholic beverages consumed 

on premises). 

Minimum on first $2,000 ................................................................................ $200.00 PLUS 

Per $1,000, or fraction, over $2,000 ............................................................................ $2.00 

A license must be issued in the name of the individual who has been issued a State alcohol, beer 

or wine permit or license and will have actual control and management of the business. 

 

9.91 NAICS 7115 – Adult Exotic Dancers, other Sexually Oriented Businesses. 

Minimum on first $2,000 ................................................................................ $500.00 PLUS 

Per $1,000, or fraction, over $2,000 ............................................................................ $2.00 

  



 

B-2 

APPENDIX B 

Classes 1 – 8: Business License Class Schedule by NAICS Codes 

   

NAICS  

Sector/Subsector Industry Sector Class 

11 Agriculture, forestry, hunting, and fishing 1 

21 Mining 2 

22 Utilities 1 

31 - 33 Manufacturing 3 

42 Wholesale trade 1 

44 - 45 Retail trade 1 

48 - 49 Transportation and warehousing 1 

51 Information 4 

52 Finance and insurance 7 

53 Real estate and rental and leasing 7 

54 Professional, scientific, and technical services 5 

55 Management of companies 7 

56 Administrative and support and waste management and remediation services 3 

61 Educational services 3 

62 Health care and social assistance 4 

71 Arts, entertainment, and recreation 3 

721 Accommodation 1 

722 Food services and drinking places 2 

81 Other services 4 

      



 

B-2 

 

Class 8 Subclasses   

23 Construction 8.1 

482 Rail Transportation 8.2 

517111 Wired Telecommunications Carriers  8.3 

517112 Wireless Telecommunications Carriers (except Satellite) 8.3 

517122 Agents for Wireless Telecommunications Services 8.3 

5241 Insurance Carriers 8.4 

5242 Insurance Brokers for non-admitted Insurance Carriers 8.4 

713120 Amusement Parks and Arcades 8.51 

713290 Non-payout Amusement Machines 8.52 

713990 All Other Amusement and Recreational Industries (pool tables) 8.6 

      

Class 9 Subclasses   

4411 Automobile Dealers 9.30 

4412 Other Motor Vehicle Dealers 9.30 

722410 Drinking Places (Alcoholic Beverages) 9.70 

7115 Adult Exotic Dancers, other Sexually Oriented Businesses  9.91 

 

2023 Class Schedule is based on a three-year average (2017 - 2019) of IRS statistical data. 

   

















































































































































Minutes - 
08.21.2023   

 

JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL 

Jasper County Clementa C. Pinckney Government Bldg.  
     358 3rd Avenue Ridgeland, SC 29936                                                                                                                                     

     Monday, August 21, 2023 

 
Officials Present:  Chairman L. Martin Sauls IV, Vice Chairwoman Barbara B. Clark 
Councilman Pastor Alvin Adkins, Councilman John Kemp.  Absent: Councilman Coy Garbade.     
 
Staff Present: County Administrator Andrew Fulghum, Deputy Clerk to Council, Tisha Williams,    
County Attorney David Tedder, Kimberly Burgess, Russell Wells, Danny Lucas and Videographer Jonathan 
Dunham.   
 
1. Call to Order: 
 Chairman Sauls called the 5pm Council Meeting to order, no workshop was held and the Report of   
 Compliance with the Freedom of Information Act was read for the records as follows:  In compliance with  
 the Freedom of   Information Act, notice of meetings and agendas were posted and furnished to all news  
 media and persons requesting notification  
 
2.         Executive Session SECTION 30-4-70.   

(a) A public body may hold a meeting closed to the public for one or more of the following reasons: 
        

(2)  Discussion of negotiations incident to proposed contract arrangements and 
proposed purchase or sale of property, the receipt of legal advice where the legal 
advice related to pending, threatened, or potential claim or other matters covered 
by the attorney-client privilege, settlement of legal claims, or the position of the 
public agency in other adversary situations involving the assertion against the 
agency of a claim – Jasper Animal Rescue Mission (JARM) Lease; Intergovernmental 
Agreement (IGA) with City of Hardeeville for funding of Workforce Training 
Program; Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Beaufort, Colleton and 
Hampton Counties for Regional Jail Study; Litigation Update – Ball v. Jasper County, 
Haina v. Jasper County, Jasper County v. Western Suety Company and Denise Smith, 
Davis v. Jasper County; Tax Map# 062-00-03-056, Tax Map# 063-26-14-002, Tax 
Map# 063-26-14-001 and Tax Map# 067-00-01-010; Prayer at Meetings; Airport 
Matters - Heddings 
 

       (5)  Discussion of matters relating to the proposed location, expansion, or the provision  
     of services encouraging location or expansion of industries or other businesses in 
     the area served by a public body – Projects Slab, Water, Ice, Deepwater and Gelato   
 



Minutes - 
08.21.2023   

 

ANY EXECUTIVE SESSION MATTER ON WHICH DISCUSSION HAS NOT BEEN COMPLETED MAY HAVE 
DISCUSSION SUSPENDED FOR PURPOSES OF BEGINNING THE OPEN SESSION AT ITS SCHEDULED TIME, AND 
COUNCIL MAY RETURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION DISCUSSION AFTER THE CONCLUSION OF THE OPEN SESSION 
AGENDA ITEMS. PLEASE BE ADVISED THERE MAY BE VOTES BASED ON ITEMS FROM THE EXECUTIVE SESSION. 
   
3:  Return to Open Session at 6:30PM.  
Open Session convened and began at 6:42PM. 
 
Motion to return to Open Session: Councilman Adkins 
Second: Councilman Kemp  
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
 

o 3.1 Action coming out of Executive Session 
 
Motion to move to authorize the Administrator to attempt to reach a resolution in the Davis VS Jasper County 
matter within the parameters discussed in Executive Session: Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Second: Councilman Adkins  
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
 
4.  Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation:  
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was given, and the Invocation was led by Councilman Adkins.  
 
5.  Discussion of Consent Agenda and Agenda Items:  
 
Motion to approve:  Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Second:  Councilman Adkins 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion carried. 
 
6.  Approval of Agenda:  
 
Motion to approve:  Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Second:  Councilman Adkins 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion carried. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
7. Open Floor to the Public per Ordinance 08-17 Any citizen of the County may sign to speak in person at 
the Council Meeting (before the Council Meeting’s 6:30PM start time on the Sign-In Sheet on the 



Minutes - 
08.21.2023   

 

Podium), to address Council on matters pertaining to County Services and Operations. Presentations will 
be limited to three (3) minutes per person and total public input will be limited to 30 minutes. 
 
Diane Bostick – Topic - Auditor Complaint  
 
 
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

PRESENTATIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
8. David Tedder – Proclamation for the 2023 Gullah Geechee Nation Appreciation Week to Queen Quet.  
 
Chairman Sauls read and presented this proclamation along with Council to Queen Quet for the recognition 
of the 2023 Gullah Geechee Nation Appreciation Week.  
 
9. M.B. Kahn – Presentation for Coosawhatchie Community Center and Fire Station Project  
Ms. Maggie Dittmar, Mr. Bill Ramsey and Ms. Margaret Rush presented their presentation for the for 
Coosawhatchie Community Center and Fire Station Project’s to Council.  
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

RESOLUTIONS 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
10.  David Tedder – Consideration of Resolution #R-2023-14 to Approve and Adopt an Intergovernmental 
Agreement between Jasper County and the City of Hardeeville (Workforce Training Program).  
 
Motion to approve:  Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Second:  Councilman Adkins 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion carried. 
 
11.  David Tedder – Consideration of Resolution #R-2023-15 to Provide Approval of the Revised Legal 
Description for a Fee in Lieu of Taxes Agreement between Jasper County and CP Hardeeville, LLC Dated 
February 22, 2022.  
 
Motion to approve:  Councilman Kemp 
Second:  Councilman Adkins 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion carried. 
 
12.  David Tedder – Consideration of Resolution #R-2023-16 Appointing a Litter Control/Codes 
Enforcement Officer for the Proper Security, General Welfare and Convenience of Jasper County  
 
Motion to approve:  Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Second:  Councilman Adkins 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion carried. 



Minutes - 
08.21.2023   

 

 
13.  Kim Burgess – Consideration of Resolution #R-2023-17 Authorizing the Commitment of Funds for Use 
by the Jasper County 250 Committee to be Paid From Local Accommodations   
 
Councilman Kemp Recused himself (written statement provided).  
Motion to approve:  Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Second:  Councilman Adkins 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion carried. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

PUBLIC HEARINGS, ORDINANCES AND ACTION ITEMS 
 

 
14.  Russell Wells – Consideration of the 3rd reading of Ordinance #O-2023-12 Amending 
Chapter 9, CIVIL EMERGENCIES, by creating new Divisions, adopting restrictions and conditions 
regarding open burning of vegetation, leaves, and other materials, and matters related 
thereto. (1st reading 05.15.2023; 2nd reading 07.17.2023)  
 
Motion to approve:  Councilman Kemp 
Second:   Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Vote:  
Chairman Sauls:  No 
Councilman Adkins:  No 
Councilman Kemp:  Yes 
Vice Chairwoman Clark:  Yes 
There was a tie vote, so the motion did not pass. 
 
15. Lisa Wagner - Public hearing and consideration of the 2nd reading  of Ordinance #O-2023-14 to 
amend the Official Zoning Map of Jasper County so as to transfer three (3) properties located along 
Honey Hill Road, bearing Jasper County Tax Map Numbers: 029-00-02-028, a 6-acre portion as shown 
on the attached exhibit; 029-00-02-079; and 029-00-02-086, from the Rural Preservation Zone to the 
Community Commercial Zone, and one (1) property located along Honey Hill Road bearing Jasper 
County Tax Map Number 029-00-02-061 from the Residential Zone to the Community Commercial 
Zone on the Jasper County Official Zoning Map. (1st reading 07.17.2023) 
 
Motion to approve:  Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Second:  Councilman Adkins 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion carried. 
 
16.  Lisa Wagner -  Consideration of 1st reading of an ordinance To Amend Article 6:1 – Table 1, Use 
Regulations; Article 7:3 – Table 1, Schedule of Lot Area, Yard, Setback, and Density; Article 11:7, Industry 
Specific Conditional Use Regulations, Sections 11:7.31, Duplexes; 11:7.32 Townhouses; and 11:7.33, Patio 
Homes of the Jasper County Zoning Ordinance, to remove duplexes, townhouses, and patio homes as a 



Minutes - 
08.21.2023   

 

conditional use from certain Zoning Districts, add conditional use requirements, increase the setback 
requirements and reduce the allowed density for duplexes, townhomes, and patio homes.  
 
Motion to approve:  Councilman Kemp 
Second: Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion carried. 
 
17.  John Kemp – Consideration of 1st reading of an ordinance To establish a Board of Parks and 
Recreation for Jasper County, South Carolina by adopting a new, Chapter 2, Article IV, Division 4 in the 
Jasper County Code of Ordinances. 
 
Motion to approve:  Councilman Adkins 
Second: Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion carried. 
 
Motion to reconsider Item # 14.  Russell Wells – Consideration of the 3rd reading of Ordinance 
#O-2023-12 Amending Chapter 9, CIVIL EMERGENCIES, by creating new Divisions, adopting 
restrictions and conditions regarding open burning of vegetation, leaves, and other materials, 
and matters related thereto. (1st reading 05.15.2023; 2nd reading 07.17.2023) : Councilman 
Kemp 
Second: Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion for reconsideration passed. 
 
Motion to table item # 14.  Russell Wells – Consideration of the 3rd reading of Ordinance #O-
2023-12 Amending Chapter 9, CIVIL EMERGENCIES, by creating new Divisions, adopting 
restrictions and conditions regarding open burning of vegetation, leaves, and other materials, 
and matters related thereto. (1st reading 05.15.2023; 2nd reading 07.17.2023) until the next 
meeting: Councilman Kemp 
Second: Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion for reconsideration passed. 

18.  Kim Burgess – Consideration of 1st reading of an ordinance to Amend Jasper County Ordinance 
O-2022-17 for Fiscal Year 2023 Jasper County Budget to Provide for Amendments to the Budget and 
to Carryover Approved Lapsing Funds to Fiscal Year 2024, and to Amen Jasper County Ordinance O-
2023-09 for Fiscal Year 2024 Jasper County Budget to Provide for Amendments to the Budget 
Lapsing Funds from Fiscal Year 2023 and to Correct an Error in Section 2 of the Budget Regarding a 
Mathematical Error. Clark – Y, Adkins – Y, Sauls – Y 
 
Motion to approve:  Councilman Adkins 
Second: Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Vote: Unanimous 



Minutes - 
08.21.2023   

 

The motion carried. 

 
19. Wanda Simmons - Request and consideration of the reappointment as requested by Mary Lou 
Franzoni for Mr. Charles Mitchell Jr. to be re-appointed as the Jasper County Representative to the 
Lowcountry Regional Transportation Authority Board of Directors for a term of 3 years.  
 
Mr. Fulghum presented this request and noted that in the packet had been provided by Clerk to Council 
Wanda Simmons. A letter from Mary Lou Franzoni was in the agenda e-packet requesting the 
reappointment of Mr. Charles Mitchell Jr. 
 
Motion to approve:  Councilman Kemp 
Second: Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion carried. 
 
20. Wanda Simmons - Request and consideration for an appointment to the Board of Zoning Appeals.  
 
Mr. Fulghum presented this request and noted that the information in the packet had been provided by 
Clerk to Council Wanda Simmons. Ms. Frances M. Chalmers had submitted an application to be a member 
of the Board of Zoning Appeals.  Staff recommended the approval of her application for this board as the 
newest member to the BZA. 
 
Motion to approve:  Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Second:  Councilman Adkins 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion carried. 

21. Wanda Simmons - Request and consideration of the Council Appointments to the Airport 
Commission.  

Mr. Fulghum presented this request and noted that the information in the packet had been provided 
by Clerk to Council Wanda Simmons. Chairman Sauls noted that Councilman Garbade was not 
present, but had advanced a name as his appointee.  Mr. Fulghum noted that Councilman Garbade 
advanced Mr. Richard Dean.  
 
Appointees:    Appointment Made By: 
Avery Cleland    Chairman Sauls 
Steven Alston    Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Richard Dean    Councilman Garbade 
Baylor O’Cain    Councilman Kemp 
James Williams   Councilman Adkins  
 
Motion to approve:  Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Second:  Councilman Adkins 



Minutes - 
08.21.2023   

 

Vote: Unanimous 
The motion carried. 

22. Wanda Simmons - Request and consideration of the Council Appointments to the Levy Fire 
Protection District Board.  
 
Mr. Fulghum presented this request and noted that the information in the packet had been provided by Clerk 
to Council Wanda Simmons. 
 
Appointees:     Appointment Made By: 
Patrick Dantzler    Chairman Sauls 
Michael Shannon Saxon   Councilman Kemp 
Chad Scott Councilman Garbade (was not present for the meeting, but 

Chairman Sauls noted Councilman Garbade’s appointment was 
Mr. Chad Scott) 

No appointment (made at this time)  Councilman Adkins 
No appointment (made at this time)  Vice Chairwoman Clark 
 
Mr. Fulghum noted that 2 members must be former Board Members of the Levy Fire Department Board.  
Chairman Sauls said that since Vice Chairwoman Clark and Councilman Adkins still had appointments to make 
that could be former Board Members. 
 
Motion to approve off the three names submitted:  Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Second:  Councilman Adkins 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion carried. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
23.  Administrator’s Report:  Mr. Fulghum said most of his information was informational and there were 
no Action Items for Council in the Administrator’s Report.  He and Council thanked Ms. Tisha Williams for 
standing in for Clerk to Council Wanda Simmons.  He also noted that in July that Mr. Tedder had been 
elected as President to the SC Association of Attorneys. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________  
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda:  Councilman Adkins 
Second: Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion carried. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

 
24.  Russell Wells - Consideration of the Sourcewell Cooperative purchase of the Generator for Firetower 
Road Fire Station in the amount of $105,427.00.  (This was approved in the FY 23-24 budget, however 
contract exceeds authority of the Administrator).  



Minutes - 
08.21.2023   

 

 
25.  Kim Burgess – Consideration of Change Order Number 8 from C. Merrill Construction Company Inc., 
for Marsh Cove Fire Station in the amount of $81,421.00 
 
26.  Approval of the Minutes of May 1, 2023. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

 
END OF CONSENT AGENDA 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
27. Council Members Comments: 
Councilmember Comments were given but there were no comments that required action. 

 
28. Possible Return to Executive Session to Continue Discussion on Matters Regarding Agenda 
Item II.  – There was no need to return to Executive Session for this meeting. For additional information 
on this meeting please visit our website for the E-Packet or for the video go to 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA .  
 
29. Adjournment: 
Motion to Adjourn:  Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Second:  Councilman Adkins 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The meeting adjourned at 8:07pm.  
 
Respectfully submitted:      
           
_______________________________________ 
Wanda H. Giles 
Clerk to Council        
       ________________________________________   

          L.  Martin Sauls IV 
Chairman                           

 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA


JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL  
SPECIAL EMERGENCY  

VIRTUAL MEETING 
Jasper County Clementa C. Pinckney 

Government Building 
358 THIRD AVENUE RIDGELAND, SC 29936 

AUGUST 30, 2023 
MINUTES 

 
Officials Present: Chairman L. Martin Sauls IV, Vice Chairwoman Barbara B. Clark, Councilman Pastor Alvin 
Adkins Absent: Councilman John Kemp and Councilman Coy Garbade. 
 
 Staff Present: County Administrator Andrew Fulghum, Clerk to Council Wanda Giles,    
 County Attorney David Tedder, Chief Russell Wells, and Videographer Jonathan Dunham.   
 
 Chairman Sauls called the 11am Council Meeting to order and the Report of Compliance with the  
 Freedom of Information Act was read for the records as follows:  In compliance with the Freedom of   
 Information Act, notice of meetings and agendas were posted and furnished to all news media and    
 persons requesting notification.  The Pledge of Allegiance was given, ;and the Invocation was led by Vice 
Chairwoman Clark.  

I. Chief Russell Wells – Hurricane Idalia Update 

Chief Wells gave an update on Hurricane Idalia to Council and staff. He noted that the Hurricane had made 
landfall as a Category 3 Hurricane.  
 
II. Resolution/Proclamation 
 
David Tedder - RESOLUTION/PROCLAMATION DECLARING STATE OF EMERGENCY IN JASPER COUNTY DUE TO 
HURRICANE IDALIA 

 
Motion to approve:  Councilman Kemp 
Second:  Councilman Adkins 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed.  

Adjourn 
For additional information on this meeting please visit our website for the E-Packet or for the video go to 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA .  
 
Motion to adjourn:  Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Second:  Councilman Adkins 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed. 

 
Respectfully submitted:      
           
_______________________________________  _____________________________________ 
Wanda H. Giles, Clerk to Council    L.  Martin Sauls IV, Chairman 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA


 
 

Minutes - 
09.05.2023  

 

JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL 

Jasper County Clementa C. Pinckney Government Bldg.  
     358 3rd Avenue, Ridgeland, SC 29936                                                                                                                                     

     Tuesday, September 5, 2023 

 
Officials Present: Chairman L. Martin Sauls IV, Vice Chairwoman Barbara B. Clark, Councilman Pastor Alvin 
Adkins, Councilman John Kemp and Councilman Coy Garbade. 
 
Staff Present: County Administrator Andrew Fulghum, Clerk to Council, Wanda Giles, County Attorney 
David Tedder, Kimberly Burgess, Chief Russell Wells, Danny Lucas and Videographer Jonathan Dunham.   
 
 Chairman Sauls called the 5:30pm Council Meeting to order and the Report of Compliance with the  
 Freedom of Information Act was read for the records as follows:  In compliance with the Freedom of   
 Information Act, notice of meetings and agendas were posted and furnished to all news media and    
 persons requesting notification.   
 
2.         Executive Session SECTION 30-4-70.   

(a) A public body may hold a meeting closed to the public for one or more of the following reasons: 
 
(1) Discussion of employment, appointment, compensation, promotion, demotion,  

       discipline, or release of an employee, a student, or a person regulated by a public body or    
the appointment of a person to a public body – Levy Fire Protection District Board  

 
(2)  Discussion of negotiations incident to proposed contract arrangements and 
proposed purchase or sale of property, the receipt of legal advice where the legal 
advice related to pending, threatened, or potential claim or other matters covered 
by the attorney-client privilege, settlement of legal claims, or the position of the 
public agency in other adversary situations involving the assertion against the 
agency of a claim – Litigation Update – Davis v. Jasper County; Airport Matters – 
Hangar Leases; Contract Discussion Lease or Purchase of Aviation Fuel Trucks; 
Ridgeland Fire Contract 
 

       (5)  Discussion of matters relating to the proposed location, expansion, or the provision  
     of services encouraging location or expansion of industries or other businesses in 
     the area served by a public body – Prospect Update  
 

Motion to go into executive session:  Councilman Kemp 
Second:  Councilman Adkins 
Vote:  Unanimous 



 
 

Minutes - 
09.05.2023  

 

The motion passed. 
 
ANY EXECUTIVE SESSION MATTER ON WHICH DISCUSSION HAS NOT BEEN COMPLETED MAY HAVE DISCUSSION 
SUSPENDED FOR PURPOSES OF BEGINNING THE OPEN SESSION AT ITS SCHEDULED TIME, AND COUNCIL MAY RETURN 
TO EXECUTIVE SESSION DISCUSSION AFTER THE CONCLUSION OF THE OPEN SESSION AGENDA ITEMS. PLEASE BE 
ADVISED THERE MAY BE VOTES BASED ON ITEMS FROM THE EXECUTIVE SESSION. 

 
The regular session began at the conclusion of the Executive Session. 
 
3:  Return to Open Session at 6:30PM 
 
Motion to return to open session:  Councilman Adkins  
Second:  Councilman Garbade 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
 
3.1 Action coming out of Executive Session:  There was no action to be taken from Executive Session. 
 
4. Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation:  
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was given and Councilman Adkins gave the invocation. 

 
5.  Discussion of Consent Agenda and Agenda Items: 
 
On item # 9, a change was made to Resolution # R-2023-18 to change it to R-2023-18A. 
 
6.  Approval of Agenda:  
 
Motion to approve:  Councilman Kemp 
Second:  Councilman Adkins 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
 
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

PRESENTATIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
7. Anne Caywood – Executive Director Lowcountry Legal Volunteers:  Topic "Jasper County Outreach and 

Support" 

 
Ms. Caywood was present to discuss Lowcountry Legal Volunteers and the services that they provide. 
 
8. Denise R. Grabowski, AICP, LEED AP, Symbioscity, LLC. – Topic “Review and Update of the 
Comprehensive Plan and the Euhaw Broad River Planning Area” 



 
 

Minutes - 
09.05.2023  

 

 
Ms. Denise Grabowski Owner of Symbioscity LLC was present to review and update the Comprehensive 
Plan and the Euhaw Broad River Planning Area.  She reviewed the presentation that was included in the 
Agenda e-packet.  That presentation can be found here at  
https://www.jaspercountysc.gov/county-council-agenda-minutes-e-packets or the video can be viewed at 

https://www.youtube.com/@jcmedia6537 . 
 
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

RESOLUTIONS 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
9.  Andrew Fulghum – Consideration of Resolution #R-2023-18A authorizing the Administrator to execute  
Detention Center Mutual Aid Agreements. 
 
Mr. Fulghum was present and reviewed and discussed this resolution and what it entailed. Mr. Fulghum 
noted that this resolution would allow the County Administrator to enter into this agreement and like 
agreements with other counties in the future. 
 
Motion to approve this resolution and authorize the County Administrator to enter into this agreement and 
like agreements with other counties in the future:  Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Second:  Councilman Adkins 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
______________________________________________________________________________________  

PUBLIC HEARINGS, ORDINANCES AND ACTION ITEMS 
 

 
10. Russell Wells – Consideration of the 3rd reading of Ordinance #O-2023-12 Amending 
Chapter 9, CIVIL EMERGENCIES, by creating new Divisions, adopting restrictions and conditions 
regarding open burning of vegetation, leaves, and other materials, and matters related 
thereto. (1st reading 05.15.2023; 2nd reading 07.17.2023; 3rd reading tabled 08.21.2023)  
 
Chief Wells was present to review and discuss this item with Council. Chief Wells discussed the 3 options 
presented within this ordinance to Council.  After some consideration Council agreed that the best option 
seemed to be the timeframe of Sunrise to Sunset.   
 
Motion to approve:  Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Second:  Councilman Adkins 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
  
11.  Lisa Wagner -  Public Hearing and 2nd reading of Ordinance #O-2023-15 of an ordinance To 
Amend Article 6:1 – Table 1, Use Regulations; Article 7:3 – Table 1, Schedule of Lot Area, Yard, 
Setback, and Density; Article 11:7, Industry Specific Conditional Use Regulations, Sections 
11:7.31, Duplexes; 11:7.32 Townhouses; and 11:7.33, Patio Homes of the Jasper County Zoning 

https://www.jaspercountysc.gov/county-council-agenda-minutes-e-packets
https://www.youtube.com/@jcmedia6537


 
 

Minutes - 
09.05.2023  

 

Ordinance, to remove duplexes, townhouses, and patio homes as a conditional use from 
certain Zoning Districts, add conditional use requirements, increase the setback requirements 
and reduce the allowed density for duplexes, townhomes, and patio homes. (1st reading 
08.21.2023) 
 
Mr. Tedder was present to discuss and review this second reading of the ordinance with Council.  
The public hearing was called to order but there were no comments, so the public hearing was 
closed. 
 
Motion to approve:  Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Second:  Councilman Kemp 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 

12.  David Tedder – Consideration of the 2nd reading of Ordinance #O-2023-16 establish a Board of 
Parks and Recreation for Jasper County, South Carolina by adopting a new, Chapter 2, Article IV, 
Division 4 in the Jasper County Code of Ordinances (1streading 08.21.2023). 
 
Mr. Tedder was present to discuss and review this second reading of this ordinance with 
Council.  He noted that Councilman Kemp had helped put together this ordinance and that he 
had made a couple of changes.  He noted that staff recommended approval of the revised 
document on the 2nd reading.  He also noted that the Public Hearing would be held at the next 
meeting. 
 
Motion to approve:  Councilman Kemp 
Second:  Councilman Garbade 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 

13. Kim Burgess – Consideration of the 2nd reading of Ordinance #O-2023-17 to Amend Jasper 
County Ordinance O-2022-17 for Fiscal Year 2023 Jasper County Budget to Provide for Amendments 
to the Budget and to Carryover Approved Lapsing Funds to Fiscal Year 2024, and to Amen Jasper 
County Ordinance O-2023-09 for Fiscal Year 2024 Jasper County Budget to Provide for Amendments 
to the Budget Lapsing Funds from Fiscal Year 2023 and to Correct an Error in Section 2 of the Budget 
Regarding a Mathematical Error. (1st reading 08.21.2023) 
  
Ms. Burgess was present to discuss and review this second reading of the ordinance with 
Council.  She noted that the public hearing was scheduled for the next meeting on the 18th. 
 
Motion to approve:  Councilman Adkins  
Second: Vice Chairwoman Clark  
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________  



 
 

Minutes - 
09.05.2023  

 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
14. Open Floor to the Public per Ordinance 08-17 Any citizen of the County may sign to speak in person at 
the Council Meeting (before the Council Meeting’s 6:30PM start time on the Sign-In Sheet on the 
Podium), to address Council on matters pertaining to County Services and Operations. Presentations will 
be limited to three (3) minutes per person and total public input will be limited to 30 minutes. 
 
Hedy Frazier was present to discuss the Coosawhatchie Community Center in Gillisonville. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
15.  Administrator’s Report - Mr. Fulghum reviewed his information and noted that most of his information 
was informational. There were no Action Items requiring a vote from Council in the Administrator’s Report.     
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 
Motion to approve:  Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Second:  Councilman Adkins 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

 
16. Lisa Wagner - Consideration of the 3rd reading  of Ordinance #O-2023-14 to amend the Official 
Zoning Map of Jasper County so as to transfer three (3) properties located along Honey Hill Road, 
bearing Jasper County Tax Map Numbers: 029-00-02-028, a 6-acre portion as shown on the attached 
exhibit; 029-00-02-079; and 029-00-02-086, from the Rural Preservation Zone to the Community 
Commercial Zone, and one (1) property located along Honey Hill Road bearing Jasper County Tax Map 
Number 029-00-02-061 from the Residential Zone to the Community Commercial Zone on the Jasper 
County Official Zoning Map. (1st reading 07.17.2023; 2nd reading 08.21.2023) 
 
17. Russell Wells – Consideration of the Motorola Service Contract Renewal. (This was approved in the  
FY 23-24 budget, however contract exceeds authority of the Administrator).  
 
18.  Approval of the Minutes of May 5, 2023.  
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

 
END OF CONSENT AGENDA 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
19.   Council Members Comments 
Councilmember Comments were given but there were no comments that required action. 

 
20.  Possible Return to Executive Session to Continue Discussion on Matters Regarding Agenda  



 
 

Minutes - 
09.05.2023  

 

Item II. There was no need to return to Executive Session for this meeting. For additional information on this 
meeting please visit our website for the E-Packet or for the video go to 

https://www.youtube.com/@jcmedia6537 . 
 

21. Adjournment: 
 
Motion to Adjourn:  Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Second:  Councilman Adkins 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The meeting adjourned at 7:33pm.  
 
Respectfully submitted:      
           
_______________________________________ 
Wanda H. Giles 
Clerk to Council        
       ________________________________________   

          L.  Martin Sauls IV 
Chairman                           

 
 

https://www.youtube.com/@jcmedia6537


 
 

Minutes - 
09.18.2023  

 

JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL 

Jasper County Clementa C. Pinckney Government Bldg.  
     358 3rd Avenue, Ridgeland, SC 29936                                                                                                                                     

     Monday, September 18, 2023 

   
   Workshop 
 
    Workshop with the Jasper County Board of Education. Ms. Burgess was present to discuss this request.  She    
    noted that she had met yesterday and today regarding their millage rate request above 25 mills. 
    She discussed the bonds the School District had and reviewed the conversation that the parties had covered.    
    She also noted that with the findings that the additional millage rate would not be needed. 

 
   Officials Present: Chairman L. Martin Sauls IV, Councilman Pastor Alvin Adkins, Councilman Coy Garbade  
 and Vice Chairwoman Barbara B. Clark.  Absent: Councilman John Kemp 

 
 Staff Present: County Administrator Andrew Fulghum, Clerk to Council Wanda Giles, County Attorney David   
 Tedder, Kimberly Burgess, Russell Wells, Lisa Wagner, and Videographer Jonathan Dunham.   

 
   1. Call to Order: 
 Chairman Sauls called the Executive Session Meeting to order and read the Report of Compliance with the   
 Freedom of Information Act was read for the records as follows:  In compliance with the Freedom of   
 Information Act, notice of meetings and agendas were posted and furnished to all news media and persons  
 requesting notification. 

 
  2.       Executive Session SECTION 30-4-70.   

(a) A public body may hold a meeting closed to the public for one or more of the following reasons: 
 
(2)  Discussion of negotiations incident to proposed contract arrangements and 
proposed purchase or sale of property, the receipt of legal advice where the legal 
advice related to pending, threatened, or potential claim or other matters covered 
by the attorney-client privilege, settlement of legal claims, or the position of the 
public agency in other adversary situations involving the assertion against the 
agency of a claim – Litigation Update – Davis v. Jasper County; Airport Matters – 
Removal of Fuel Tank; Contract Discussion Lease or Purchase of Lektro; Ridgeland 
Fire Contract; Tax Map #’s 087-00-05-008 & 087-00-05-009; Tax Map # 062-00-03-
056; Tax Map # 063-26-14-002; Tax Map # 063-26-14-001; Tax Map # 067-00-01-010; 



 
 

Minutes - 
09.18.2023  

 

Airport Automated Weather Observation Station (AWOS) contract with Trinity 
Electric  

       (5)  Discussion of matters relating to the proposed location, expansion, or the provision  
     of services encouraging location or expansion of industries or other businesses in 
     the area served by a public body – Prospect Update; Project Refurb  
 

Motion to go into Executive Session: Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Second:  Councilman Garbade 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
  
ANY EXECUTIVE SESSION MATTER ON WHICH DISCUSSION HAS NOT BEEN COMPLETED MAY HAVE DISCUSSION 
SUSPENDED FOR PURPOSES OF BEGINNING THE OPEN SESSION AT ITS SCHEDULED TIME, AND COUNCIL MAY RETURN 
TO EXECUTIVE SESSION DISCUSSION AFTER THE CONCLUSION OF THE OPEN SESSION AGENDA ITEMS. PLEASE BE 
ADVISED THERE MAY BE VOTES BASED ON ITEMS FROM THE EXECUTIVE SESSION. 

   
3. Return to Open Session at 6:30PM 
 
Motion to return to open session:  Councilman Adkins 
Second:  Councilman Garbade 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
 

o 3.1 Action coming out of Executive Session – There was no action from executive session. 
 
4. Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation:  
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was given, and Councilman Adkins gave the invocation. 
 
5. Discussion of Consent Agenda and Agenda Items: None 
 
6. Approval of Agenda:  
 
Motion to approve the Agenda with the addition of Item # 7:  Mike Skinner, Treasurer – Presentation of 
the Treasurer’s Office to Council – Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Second:  Councilman Adkins 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

PRESENTATIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
7.  Mike Skinner, Treasurer – Presentation of the Treasurer’s Office to Council.  
 



 
 

Minutes - 
09.18.2023  

 

Treasurer Skinner made a presentation from the Treasurer’s Office.  He gave an update on what the 
Treasurer’s Office is doing and shared some details of the office upon his entry as the Treasurer. 
He noted he and his staff were excited for the work they are doing in the Treasurer’s Office.   
For additional information on this presentation, it can be found on video on the website at 
https://www.youtube.com/@jcmedia6537 .   
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

RESOLUTIONS 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
8.  None  
 ______________________________________________________________________________________  

PUBLIC HEARINGS, ORDINANCES AND ACTION ITEMS 
 

 
9. Kim Burgess – Public hearing and 3rd reading of Ordinance #O-2023-17 to Amend Jasper 
County Ordinance O-2022-17 for Fiscal Year 2023 Jasper County Budget to Provide for 
Amendments to the Budget and to Carryover Approved Lapsing Funds to Fiscal Year 2024, and 
to Amen Jasper County Ordinance O-2023-09 for Fiscal Year 2024 Jasper County Budget to 
Provide for Amendments to the Budget Lapsing Funds from Fiscal Year 2023 and to Correct an 
Error in Section 2 of the Budget Regarding a Mathematical Error. (1st reading 08.21.2023; 2nd 
reading 09.05.2023) 
 
Ms. Burgess was present to review and address this request with Council for the 3rd reading of 
this ordinance. She noted she had corrected the typographical errors that Councilman Kemp had 
previously mentioned.  The public hearing was held but there were no comments, so the public 
hearing was closed. 
 
Motion to approve:  Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Second: Councilman Adkins 
Vote: Unanimous  
The motion passed.  

10.  David Tedder – Consideration of 1st reading of an Ordinance clarifying that the provisions of 
Ordinance O-2023-06, providing that certain property subject to the Development Agreement 
entered into by the County and Conduit Street Partners, LLC (CSP) must be conveyed by the 
property’s current owner to the developer thereof, includes the developer’s successors and assigns 
by recognizing  and acknowledging the acquisition may be by an affiliate of CSP, to provide for the 
approval of an Exhibit inadvertently omitted, and matters related thereto. 
 
Mr. Tedder was present to discuss and review this first reading of the ordinance that was up for 
consideration by the Council.  He noted there was a public hearing scheduled for October 2nd.   
 
Motion to approve:  Councilman Adkins  
Second: Vice Chairwoman Clark  

https://www.youtube.com/@jcmedia6537


 
 

Minutes - 
09.18.2023  

 

Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 

11.  Kim Burgess – Presentation and Consideration of Bids for new roofs for various Jasper County 
Buildings. 
 
Ms. Burgess was present to discuss and review this request for consideration of bids for new 
roofs for the various County Buildings. She noted that staff recommended awarding the bid to 
Cleland Building Solutions LLC and authorizing Mr. Fulghum to execute any and all necessary 
documents.   
 
Motion to approve:  Councilman Adkins  
Second: Vice Chairwoman Clark  
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
12. Open Floor to the Public per Ordinance 08-17 Any citizen of the County may sign to speak in person at 
the Council Meeting (before the Council Meeting’s 6:30PM start time on the Sign-In Sheet on the 
Podium), to address Council on matters pertaining to County Services and Operations. Presentations will 
be limited to three (3) minutes per person and total public input will be limited to 30 minutes.  
There were no public comments. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
13.  Administrator’s Report - Mr. Fulghum reviewed his information. There were no Action Items requiring 
a vote from Council in the Administrator’s Report.    
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 
Motion to approve:  Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Second:  Councilman Adkins 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

 
14. Russell Wells – Consideration of approving the contract for Advanced Life Support Equipment to 
include automated CPR Equipment; Transportation Ventilators; AED’s for Sheriff’s Office and in County 
Buildings. (This was approved in the FY 23-24 budget, contract amount requires Council approval). 
 
15. Lisa Wagner -  3rd  reading of Ordinance #O-2023-15 of an ordinance To Amend Article 6:1 
– Table 1, Use Regulations; Article 7:3 – Table 1, Schedule of Lot Area, Yard, Setback, and 



 
 

Minutes - 
09.18.2023  

 

Density; Article 11:7, Industry Specific Conditional Use Regulations, Sections 11:7.31, Duplexes; 
11:7.32 Townhouses; and 11:7.33, Patio Homes of the Jasper County Zoning Ordinance, to 
remove duplexes, townhouses, and patio homes as a conditional use from certain Zoning 
Districts, add conditional use requirements, increase the setback requirements and reduce the 
allowed density for duplexes, townhomes, and patio homes. (1st reading 08.21.2023; 2nd 
reading 09.05.2023) 
 
16.  Approval of the Minutes  
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

 
END OF CONSENT AGENDA 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
17.   Council Members Comments 
Councilmember Comments were given but there were no comments that required action. 

 
18.  Possible Return to Executive Session to Continue Discussion on Matters Regarding Agenda  
Item II. There was no need to return to the Executive Session for this meeting. For additional information on 
this meeting please visit our website for the E-Packet or for the video go to 
https://www.youtube.com/@jcmedia6537 . 

 
19. Adjournment: 
 
Motion to Adjourn:  Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Second:  Councilman Adkins 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The meeting adjourned.  
 
Respectfully submitted:      
           
_______________________________________ 
Wanda H. Giles 
Clerk to Council        
       ________________________________________   

          L.  Martin Sauls IV 
Chairman                           

 

https://www.youtube.com/@jcmedia6537


 
 

Minutes 
10.02.2023  

 

JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL 

Jasper County Clementa C. Pinckney Government Bldg.  
     358 3rd Avenue, Ridgeland, SC 29936                                                                                                                                     

     Monday, October 2, 2023 

 
   Officials Present: Chairman L. Martin Sauls IV, Councilman John Kemp, Councilman Coy Garbade  
 and Vice Chairwoman Barbara B. Clark.  Absent: Councilman Pastor Alvin Adkins   

 
 Staff Present: County Administrator Andrew Fulghum, Clerk to Council Wanda Giles, County Attorney David   
 Tedder, Kimberly Burgess, Russell Wells, Rose Dobson-Elliott, and Videographer Jonathan Dunham.   

 
1.  Call to Order:  
Chairman Sauls called the Executive Session Meeting to order and read the Report of Compliance with the   
 Freedom of Information Act was read for the records as follows:  In compliance with the Freedom of   
 Information Act, notice of meetings and agendas were posted and furnished to all news media and persons  
 requesting notification. 

 
  2.        Executive Session SECTION 30-4-70.   

(a) A public body may hold a meeting closed to the public for one or more of the following reasons: 
 
(2)  Discussion of negotiations incident to proposed contract arrangements and 
proposed purchase or sale of property, the receipt of legal advice where the legal 
advice related to pending, threatened, or potential claim or other matters covered 
by the attorney-client privilege, settlement of legal claims, or the position of the 
public agency in other adversary situations involving the assertion against the 
agency of a claim –   Litigation Update – Horowitz v. Jasper County; McDowell v. 
Jasper County; Davis v. Jasper County; Airport Matters– Removal of Fuel Tank; Exit 3 
 

       (5)  Discussion of matters relating to the proposed location, expansion, or the provision  
     of services encouraging location or expansion of industries or other businesses in 
     the area served by a public body – Prospect Update  
 

Motion to go into executive session:  Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Second:  Councilman Kemp 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed.  

 
 



 
 

Minutes 
10.02.2023  

 

ANY EXECUTIVE SESSION MATTER ON WHICH DISCUSSION HAS NOT BEEN COMPLETED MAY HAVE 
DISCUSSION SUSPENDED FOR PURPOSES OF BEGINNING THE OPEN SESSION AT ITS SCHEDULED TIME, AND 
COUNCIL MAY RETURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION DISCUSSION AFTER THE CONCLUSION OF THE OPEN SESSION 
AGENDA ITEMS. PLEASE BE ADVISED THERE MAY BE VOTES BASED ON ITEMS FROM THE EXECUTIVE SESSION. 
   
3:  Return to Open Session at 6:30PM 
 
Motion to return to open session:  Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Second:  Councilman Garbade 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
 

o 3.1 Action coming out of Executive Session – There was no action from executive session. 
 
4. Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation:  
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was given, and Vice Chairwoman Clark gave the invocation. 
 
5. Discussion of Consent Agenda and Agenda Items: None 
 
6. Approval of Agenda:  
 
Motion to approve – Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Second:  Councilman Kemp 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

PRESENTATIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
6. None  
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

RESOLUTIONS 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
7. None  
 ______________________________________________________________________________________  

PUBLIC HEARINGS, ORDINANCES AND ACTION ITEMS 
 

 
8.  David Tedder – Public Hearing and Consideration of the 2nd reading of Ordinance  
#O-2023-18 clarifying that the provisions of Ordinance O-2023-06, providing that certain 
property subject to the Development Agreement entered into by the County and Conduit 



 
 

Minutes 
10.02.2023  

 

Street Partners, LLC (CSP) must be conveyed by the property’s current owner to the developer 
thereof, includes the developer’s successors and assigns by recognizing  and acknowledging 
the acquisition may be by an affiliate of CSP, to provide for the approval of an Exhibit 
inadvertently omitted, and matters related thereto (1streading 09.18.2023). 
 
Mr. Tedder was present to discuss and review this 2nd reading of the ordinance that was up for 
consideration by the Council.  He noted there was a public hearing tonight and that there would 
also be a public hearing at the next meeting as well. The public hearing for tonight was called to 
order but there were no comments, so the public hearing closed.   
 
Motion to approve:  Vice Chairwoman Clark  
Second: Councilman Kemp 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 

9. David Tedder – Public Hearing and consideration of the 3rd reading of Ordinance #O-2023-16 
establish a Board of Parks and Recreation for Jasper County, South Carolina by adopting a new, 
Chapter 2, Article IV, Division 4 in the Jasper County Code of Ordinances (1streading 08.21.2023; 2nd 
reading 09.05.2023). 
 
Mr. Tedder was present to discuss and review this 2nd reading of the ordinance that was up for 
consideration by the Council.  He noted there was a public hearing tonight on this item. The 
public hearing was called to order but there were no comments, so the public hearing closed.   
 
Motion to approve:  Councilman Garbade 
Second: Councilman Kemp 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
 
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
10. Open Floor to the Public per Ordinance 08-17 Any citizen of the County may sign to speak in person at 
the Council Meeting (before the Council Meeting’s 6:30PM start time on the Sign-In Sheet on the 
Podium), to address Council on matters pertaining to County Services and Operations. Presentations will 
be limited to three (3) minutes per person and total public input will be limited to 30 minutes. 
 
There were no citizen comments. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
11.  Administrator’s Report Mr. Fulghum reviewed his information. There were no Action Items requiring a 
vote from Council in the Administrator’s Report.    
_______________________________________________________________________________________  



 
 

Minutes 
10.02.2023  

 

12.  Approval of the Minutes of 05.24.2023 and 05.31.2023 
 
Motion to approve: Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Second: Councilman Garbade 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
 
13.   Council Members Comments 
Councilmember Comments were given but there were no comments that required action. 

 
14.  Possible Return to Executive Session to Continue Discussion on Matters Regarding Agenda  
Item II. There was no need to return to the Executive Session for this meeting. For additional information on 
this meeting please visit our website for the E-Packet or for the video go to 
https://www.youtube.com/@jcmedia6537 . 

 
15. Adjournment: 
 
Motion to Adjourn:  Vice Chairwoman Clark 
Second:  Councilman Garbade 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The meeting adjourned.  
 
Respectfully submitted:      
           
_______________________________________ 
Wanda H. Giles 
Clerk to Council        
       ________________________________________   

          L.  Martin Sauls IV 
Chairman                           

 

https://www.youtube.com/@jcmedia6537



